
CITY OF WILLMAR 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
7:00 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, JUNE 30, 2021 
VIRTUAL 
GOTOMEETING 
 
Chair:  Jonathan Marchand 
Vice Chair: Jeff Kimpling 
Members: Christina Nelson, Cletus Frank, Terry Sieck, Khalif Ahmed Bashir, Stephanie 

Carlson, and Justice Walker. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 

2. Minutes of May 19, 2021 meeting 
 

3. New Member – Mr. Steven Dresler 
 

4. Block 25 Lumber One Conditional Use Permit 
 

5. Suite Liv’n Conditional Use Permit 
 

6. Proposed Capital Improvements Project 
 

7. Miscellany 
 

8. Adjourn 
 
 

  



SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL FROM PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
WILLMAR PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILLMAR,  
WEDNESDAY, MAY 19, 2021 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

1. The Willmar Planning Commission met on Wednesday, May 19, 2021, at 7:01 p.m. 
virtually via GoToMeeting. 
 
** Members Present: Johnathan Marchand, Jeff Kimpling, Christina Nelson, Terry Sieck, 
Stephanie Carlson, and Justice Walker. 
 
** Members Absent: Khalif Ahmed Bashir, Cletus Frank,. 
 
** Others Present: Alex Rau – Planning & Development Intern, David Ramstad – 
Director of Planning & Development, Mathael Laidlaw – Overcomers International 
Fellowship, Steven Vossen – ALLCAP, LLC. 
 

2. MINUTES: Minutes of the April 21, 2020 meetings were approved as presented.  
Motioned by Commissioner Nelson, seconded by Commissioner Walker 
 

3. ALLCAP CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – FILE NO. 21-02: Staff presented a request 
by ALLCAP, LLC of Willmar for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a small 
manufacturing facility on the property legally described as follows: Section 14 Twp 119 
Range 35 that part of Solverson’s Outlot lying South of US Hwy 12.   
 
No one appeared to speak for or against the Conditional Use Permit.  Commissioner 
Carlson motioned to approve, seconded by Commissioner Walker. The findings of facts 
were read. 
 
The Conditional Use Permit was approved with the following conditions: 
 
A.  The use shall meet all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations at all 
times. 
 

4. MATHEW TIMOTHY HOUSE MINOR SUBDIVISION – FILE NO. 21-02: Staff 
presented a request by Overcomes International Fellowship of St. Cloud Minnesota for a 
minor subdivision on the property legally described as follows: First Addition to the 
Town of Willmar, Lot 13 & 14. 
 
Planning Intern Rau stated that the City of Willmar does not have a history of how these 
lots became one.  The use is currently unconforming and approving the subdivision 
would decrease the number of unconforming properties within the city.  Staff 



recommended approving the minor subdivision. 
 
No one appeared to speak for or against the minor subdivision. 
 
Commissioner Marchand asked for clarification on the future intentions Overcomers 
International Fellowship had for the property and what prompted the minor subdivision.  
Planning Intern Rau stated that there is no intention of altering the existing use.  
Commissioner Carlson spoke favorably towards the company’s assisted living program. 
 
Commissioner Marchand motioned to approve, and Commissioner Walker seconded.  
The Minor Subdivision was approved with the following conditions: 
 
A. The Minor Subdivision is contingent upon receiving a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals. 
 
B. The shed currently located on the proposed property line must be relocated off the 
property line. 
 
C. The use shall meet all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations at all 
times. 
 

5. MISCELLANY: Director Ramstad stated that Intern Rau will be the lead staff at the 
Planning Commission meetings until a Planner is hired, and that there will be three 
Conditional Use Permits on the June 2nd meeting Agenda. 
 

6. There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned 
at 7:35 p.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
David Ramstad, PhD 
Planning & Development Director 
 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 30, 2021 
 
STAFF COMMENTS – ALSO, PLEASE FIND ATTACHED CITY ATTORNEY MEMO ON 
PLANNING COMMISSION STANDARDS ON CUP REVIEW 
 

1. BLOCK 25 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FILE NO. 21-04 
 

• The applicant is Lumber One Development Company of Avon, MN. 
• The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a $10M, 57-

unit, 4 story loft style multi-family structure on the property legally described 
as follows: North ½ of Lots 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12; South ½ of lots 7, 8, 9; North 
25 ft of South ½ of lots 10, 11, 12; South 50 ft of lots 10, 11, 12. 

• All setback, lot size, and width standards are met. 
• The property is zoned CBD (Central Business) and falls within the RZ 

(Renaissance Zone) Overlay District. 
• Multifamily structures of 24-units require a CUP for areas within the 

Renaissance Zone (RZ) zoning overlay district. 
• The façade of the building is designed to reflect the scale and aesthetic of 

downtown Willmar. 
• The building will be setback 8’ from the south property line to accommodate 

landscaping to soften the pedestrian ROW. 
• A park is planned for the NE corner of the block. 
• The west half of Block-25 is currently a parking lot, the center lot is exposed 

soil, and the east end of the block is occupied by a blighted Quonset and used 
car lot. 

• On May 17, 2021, the Willmar City Council approved the purchase agreement 
for the city-owned west half of Block-25, and it has been signed by all parties. 

• The developer’s purchase agreement for the privately held parcels on the east 
half of Block-25 are also signed, and those property sales are tentatively 
scheduled to close on or about June 15th, 2021. 

• City of Willmar Staff conducted a parking survey from April 23, 2021 to May 
17, 2021, which showed a 42% utilization of the 48 parking spots, with an 
average daily use of 18.7 vehicles. Also included, are excerpts from a 2013 
parking survey that concluded CBD parking utilization is at about 54% of 
capacity. 

• The proposed project includes 43 interior parking spaces and 27 surface 
parking spaces, which significantly exceeds the minimum parking 
requirements for the Central Business District’s 0 parking space requirement. 

• The project is the first of its kind in downtown Willmar in many decades, it 
meets RZ requirements, and is only being proposed because of the RZ’s 
incentive package and zoning flexibilies. 
 
 
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Approve Conditional Use Permit with the following conditions: 
 

A. Must meet or exceed all RZ requirements, including the permanent designation of 5% of 
units rented at 80% AMI and recorded with Kandiyohi County Recorder. 

B. The use shall meet all applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 
C. Site plans including stormwater management must be submitted to the City of Willmar. 

 
2. SUITE LIV’N CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FILE NO. 21-02 

 
• The applicant is AEHN, LLC of Willmar, MN. 
• The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct two 

24-unit multi-family structure on the property legally described as follows: 
The Westerly ½ of North East ¼ of NW ¼ Section 9 except North 622’ & 
except South 370’ & except East 220’ & except West 355’ & the Westerly 
355’ of the Fol Desk Property, West ½ of NE ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 9 except 
North 622’ & except South 370’ & except East 220’. 

• The property is zoned R-4, Medium Density Residential. 
• Multi-Family structures of thirteen (13) to twenty-four (24) units require a 

Conditional Use Permit for areas zoned R-4. 
• All setback, lot size, and width standards are met. 
• Minimum parking requirements are ninety-six (96) for forty-eight (48) units. 
• Ninety-eight (98) parking spots are shown in the existing plans. 
• The façade of the building will closely resemble the surrounding multifamily 

structures found North and South of the subject property. 
• AEHN, LLC’s intends to market its units as workforce and student housing. 
• The preliminary plans provided do not include stormwater plans for City 

Engineering to review. 
• Neighboring property owners have expressed concern about the general 

maintenance of the existing structures owned and operated by AEHN, LLC. 
• AEHN, LLC. and the City of Willmar has a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 

agreement which includes maintenance, fencing, and lighting improvements. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Approve Conditional Use Permit with the following conditions: 
 

A. The use shall meet all applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 
B. Site plans including stormwater management must be submitted to the City 

Engineering and all recommendations must be followed. 
C. Wetland management requirements must be met and approved by State and Local 

authorities. 
 
 
 



3. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
 

• Maintains reasonable and safe access to all retail and industrial uses. 
• Maintains adequate parking for all business and community needs, when feasible. 
• Promotes Willmar as a great location to host conferences and other special 

events. 
• Continues to maintain, expand, and develop important public/semi-public 

community facilities, such as the Civic Center, Library, Aquatic Center, parks, 
and other key activity venues. 

• Promotes the use of the Willmar Municipal Airport as an economic development 
tool. 

• Expands and promotes tourism opportunities throughout the greater Willmar area, 
including the use of our extensive trails, lakes, and parks. 

• Develops and supports transportation system that properly integrates all modes of 
transportation. 

• Does not impact parking in the downtown area. 
• Encourages expansion of the airport to accommodate larger aircraft and 

commercial development. 
• Identifies existing streets for designated bike lanes on the master transportation 

plan. 
• Promotes water management policies/programs to conserve the quantity and 

maintain the quality of all water resources in the community and its environs. 
• Encourages preservation and management of existing parks and open space areas. 
• Aligned with design, screening and landscape standards in the construction of all 

public facilities, utilities and buildings, when needed. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Approve Capital Improvements Program with the following conditions: 
 
A. Street repair and maintenance be made a priority. 

 



 

525 Park Street | Suite 470 | St. Paul, MN 55103 | 651-225-8840 | Fax 651-225-9088 | FH@flaherty-hood.com 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  City of Willmar Planning Commission Members  BY EMAIL 

 

CC:   David Ramstad, Community Development Director 

          

From:  Robert T. Scott, Shareholder Attorney 

  Alissa M. Harrington, Associate Attorney  

                   

Date:  June 24, 2021 

 

Re: Planning Commission standards for CUP review 

 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 

On June 2, 2021, the City of Willmar (the “City”) Planning Commission (the “Commission”) 

was scheduled to meet and consider three proposals for conditional use permits (“CUP”). The 

Commission lacked quorum and did not meet. at the request of Planning and Development 

Services staff, this memorandum explains (1) the standard the Commission must use in making 

its decisions on CUP applications; (2) common problems in CUP decision making; and (3) the 

consequences of not applying the standard and/or considering prohibited information in making 

its decision on a CUP application.  

 

I. Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Standards 

 

Cities have the authority to designate by ordinance certain types of developments and 

development activities as conditional uses under zoning regulations.1 The CUP process allows a 

governing body or designated authority to review an application for certain types of 

developments, set reasonable conditions, and decide based on the local ordinance criteria and 

standards as to whether the use should be permitted. In zoning regulations, this is a middle 

ground between a permitted use, which does not require the review of a governing body, and 

completely prohibited uses.  

 

Willmar’s Zoning Code 

 

City zoning regulations generally list conditional uses alongside permitted uses by zone. The 

City’s code does so in Section 6 of the Willmar Zoning Ordinance.2 For example, in the R-4, 

Medium Density Multi-Family Residential District, the only permitted uses are:  

 

a.   Two-family (duplex) detached dwellings, including twin-homes;  

b. Three- and four-plex multi-dwellings, and town-houses up to four units; and  

c. Agricultural uses, not including livestock raising or feeding.3  

 

 
1 Minn. Stat. § 462.3595. 
2 https://cms5.revize.com/revize/cityofwillmar/Zoning%20Ordiance%20-%204-5-10_0.pdf 
3 Id. at 95 of PDF, labeled 83. 

https://cms5.revize.com/revize/cityofwillmar/Zoning%20Ordiance%20-%204-5-10_0.pdf


City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 

But the following uses are conditional uses, permitted when granted by CUP:  

 

a.  Churches and cemeteries. 

b.  Commercial day nurseries and schools. 

c.  Licensed residential facilities with seven (7) to sixteen (16) residents. 

d.  Mobile home parks, subject to section 3.K. 

e.  Multi-dwellings of thirteen (13) to twenty-four (24) units/building. 

f.  Nursing, rest, or retirement homes. 

g.  Planned unit developments. 

h.  Private and public schools.4 

 

Willmar’s CUP Standards 

 

In Willmar, the Commission has the authority to consider and issue conditional use permits, 

including setting reasonable conditions.5 Generally, all CUPs must be reviewed for impacts on 

the health, safety, and welfare of the community and for adherence with the City’s 

comprehensive plan.6 In addition, the Commission must review the project based on the 

following standards from the Willmar CUP ordinance:  

 

1.  That the conditional use, with such conditions as the Commission shall 

determine and attach, conforms to the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, and is 

in conformity with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of the City. 

 

2.  That there was no factual demonstration of a substantial/appreciable negative 

impact on values to properties in the neighborhood from the proposed conditional 

use. 

 

3.  The conditional use will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a 

natural, scenic, or historic feature of major importance to the community. 

 

4.  That the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development 

and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district as 

zoned. 

 

5.  That adequate utilities, access roads, stormwater management, and other 

necessary facilities have been, or are being, provided. 

 

6.  That adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide ingress and 

egress in such a manner as to minimize traffic congestion and maximize public 

safety in the public streets. 

 

 
4 Id.  
5 See ATTACHMENT A for copy of the CUP Process from the Willmar Zoning Ordinance.  
6 See C. R. Investments, Inc. v. Village of Shoreview, 304 N.W.2d 320, 324 (Minn. 1981). 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

7.  The conditional use will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained in 

a manner that is compatible in appearance with the existing or intended character 

of the surrounding area/neighborhood.  

 

When the Commission is reviewing a CUP, it is acting in a quasi-judicial (judge-like) role rather 

than a legislative (rulemaking) role. The quasi-judicial role requires the Commission to look at 

the law and rules as they exist and determine whether a proposed use fits within those 

parameters. In contrast, when the Commission is acting in its legislative role, it is determining 

what the rules should be. It is a vital difference, as the Commission’s discretion when in its 

quasi-judicial role is significantly limited compared to the broad discretion afforded the 

Commission in its legislative role. A commission has overstepped its limited discretion in 

reviewing a CUP, if its decision is “unreasonable, arbitrary, or capricious.”7 

 

Granting a CUP 

 

If the Commission finds all the applicable standards are met—or can be met with the imposition 

of reasonable conditions,8 the Commission must grant the CUP. To grant the CUP, the 

Commission must make affirmative findings demonstrating the proposed use and conditions, if 

applicable, adhere to the standards listed in the Willmar Zoning Ordinance.9 The findings must 

be both legally sufficient and supported by a factual basis on the record.10 Once a CUP applicant 

meets the standards for a CUP, the issuance of the CUP is a “matter of right.”11 

 

Denying a CUP 

 

Should the Commission find any of the standards are not met and cannot be met by the 

imposition of reasonable conditions, the Commission may deny CUP. To deny a CUP, the 

Commission must demonstrate its denial is not “unreasonable, arbitrary, or capricious”12 by 

stating the legally sufficient reason for denial and specific supporting facts.13 Legally sufficient 

reasons are limited to failure to meet the standards discussed above. Specific facts—not general 

concerns or speculation—must show how the proposal (and any reasonable conditions) do not 

and cannot meet the standards.  

 

II. Common Problems 

 

General opposition and concern 

 

General opposition and concern regarding public safety, welfare, traffic, etc. cannot be the basis 

for a denial of a CUP that meets all other standards. "[D]enial of a conditional use must be based 

on something more concrete than neighborhood opposition and expressions of concern for public 
 

7 RDNT, LLC v. City of Bloomington, 861 N.W.2d 71, 76 (Minn. 2015). 
8 Minn. Stat. § 462.3595, subd. 1. 
9 Willmar Zoning Ordinance, Section 9E.3.a. 
10 RDNT, LLC v. City of Bloomington, 861 N.W.2d 71, 76 (Minn. 2015). 
11 Citizens for a Balanced City v. Plymouth Congregational Church, 672 N.W.2d 13 (Minn. Ct. App. 2003). 
12 Id.  
13 Id. 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 

safety and welfare."14 Generic petitions, voiced concerns, or emails are not enough to support a 

CUP denial. If the Commission does act on general “neighborhood opposition and expression of 

concern for public safety," it is likely to be seen as arbitrary (and can be overturned).15 

 

However, if the neighborhood concerns are based on “sufficient competency and personal 

knowledge”16—such as a large building going onto an already-busy street or personal reports of 

noise issues with a similar property—those neighborhood concerns (may be sufficient to support 

a denial)”.17 But anecdotal concerns are not enough. A court overturned the denial of a CUP and 

found “neighbors' anecdotal comments contain no detail as to how the cars they witnessed might 

affect circulation or the general welfare, and are insufficiently concrete to substantiate a finding 

that the proposed use would create excess traffic.”18 

 

No consideration of reasonable conditions 

 

CUPs must be considered along with any reasonable considerations brought forward by the 

proposer.19 The Commission must grant a CUP with reasonable conditions, if the proposal meets 

the standards when the CUP and reasonable conditions are reviewed together.20 

 

If a CUP applicant can show imposing a reasonable condition would eliminate the conflict 

between the standards and the proposed use, the denial of the CUP is considered arbitrary (and 

can be overturned).21 Similarly, if a CUP applicant proposes a seemingly reasonable condition 

and the Commission makes no findings as to why the condition does not address the underlying 

problems or why it is not “reasonable,” the denial can be considered unreasonable (and 

overturned). 

 

All conditions are not “reasonable.” If the Commission can point to reasons on the record why 

the proposed condition would not address the concerns, then a decision to deny the CUP is likely 

to be upheld.22  

 

III. Consequences & Conclusion 

 

The Commission is acting in a quasi-judicial (judge-like) function when considering an 

application for a CUP, limiting the Commission’s discretion to determining if an application 

meets the standards and requirements of the City’s zoning ordinance. This limited discretion 

means the Commission may only deny an application for (1) failing to meet the standards 

 
14 Chanhassen Estates Residents Ass'n v. City of Chanhassen, 342 N.W.2d 335, 340 (Minn.1984). 
15 Chanhassen Estates Residents Ass'n, 342 N.W.2d at 340. 
16 Corwine v. Crow Wing County, 309 Minn. 345, 361, 244 N.W.2d 482, 491 (1976). 
17 Scott County Lumber Co. v. City of Shakopee, 417 N.W.2d 721, 728 (Minn.App.1988), review denied (Minn. 

Mar. 23.1988); see also Swanson v. City of Bloomington, 421 N.W.2d 307, 313 (Minn.1988) (acknowledging city 

may consider neighborhood opposition). 
18 Yang v. Cty. of Carver, 660 N.W.2d 828, 833–34 (Minn. Ct. App. 2003). 
19 Minn. Stat. § 462.3595. 
20 Minn. Stat. § 462.3595. 
21 Zylka v. City of Crystal, 283 Minn. 192, 196, 167 N.W.2d 45, 49 (1969). 
22 Trisko v. City of Waite Park, 566 N.W.2d 349 (Minn. Ct. App. 1997). 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

established in the ordinance; (2) failing to be consistent with the city’s officially adopted 

comprehensive plan; and/or (3) endangering or incompatibility with the health safety, and 

welfare of the public. If a CUP applicant can show the imposition of a reasonable condition on 

the project would eliminate the reason for the denial, the Commission must consider the 

proposed condition and grant the CUP with the condition, if the condition would reasonably 

address the concern.  

 

Should the Commission base the denial of a CUP on any other factors, ignore a reasonable 

condition, or fail to make specific, legal findings of the reason for the denial supported by facts 

on the record, the City and Commission risk a lawsuit and/or a court order forcing the issuance 

of the permit.  

 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions about this memorandum. 

 

Thank you.  

 

RTS/AMH 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

Willmar Zoning Ordinance—Conditional Use Permits 

 

SECTION 9.E. CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS. 

1. Application. An application for a conditional use permit shall be submitted to the Zoning 

Administrator. A nonrefundable application fee, as established from time to time by the City 

Council to cover administrative costs and costs of the hearing, shall accompany each application. 

2. Purpose. The purpose of a conditional use permit is to provide the City of Willmar with a 

reasonable degree of discretion in determining the suitability of certain designated uses in 

relation to the general welfare, public health, and safety. 

Conditional use permits may be considered and issued by the Planning Commission in the 

following instances: 

a. Where provided for in this Ordinance. 

b. Where a particular use sought or requested is not provided for or included in any 

district as set forth in this Ordinance. 

c. For government uses or other uses traditionally associated with a public use (e.g. 

schools, churches, etc. ) . 

d. For a temporary use not otherwise provided for in this Ordinance and which would be 

inappropriate or detrimental if permitted as a permanent use. 

3. Standards for Conditional Use Permits. 

a. A conditional use permit shall be granted only if the Planning commission makes, where 

applicable, the following affirmative findings: 

1. That the conditional use, with such conditions as the Commission shall determine and 

attach, conforms to the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, and is in conformity with 

the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of the City. 

2 That there was no factual demonstration of a substantial/appreciable negative impact on 

values to properties in the neighborhood from the proposed conditional use. 

3. The conditional use will not result in the destruction, loss, or damage of a natural, 

scenic, or historic feature of major importance to the community. 

4. That the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district as zoned. 

5. That adequate utilities, access roads, stormwater management, and other necessary 

facilities have been, or are being, provided. 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

6 That adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide ingress and egress in 

such a manner as to minimize traffic congestion and maximize public safety in the public 

streets. 

7. The conditional use will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained in a 

manner that is compatible in appearance with the existing or intended character of the 

surrounding area/neighborhood. 

4. Conditions 

a. The Planning Commission may impose conditions upon the conditional use if, in its opinion, 

specific circumstances of a request justify those additional controls to protect the health, safety, 

and welfare of the neighborhood and general public. 

b. The Planning commission shall impose a condition that the use at all times conforms to all 

applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 

c. The city Engineer shall approve any off-street parking lots and ingress and egress to the site 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

5. Reconsideration. Whenever an application for a conditional use permit has been considered 

and denied, a similar application for a conditional use permit affecting substantially the same 

property shall not be considered again by the Planning commission for a period of six (6) months 

from the date of the denial unless a decision to reconsider such matter is made by not less than 

six-eighths (6/8) vote of the city council. 

6. Lapse of Conditional Use Permit by Non-use. If, within one year after granting a conditional 

use permit, the work has not been substantially completed, then such permit shall become null 

and void unless a petition for an extension of time in which to complete the work has been 

granted by the Planning commission. Such extensions shall be requested in writing and filed with 

the Zoning Administrator at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of the original conditional 

use permit. There shall be no charge for the filing of such petition. The request for extension 

shall state facts showing a good faith attempt to complete the work permitted in the conditional 

use permit. Such petition shall be presented to the Commission for their review and decision. 

7. Termination. The violation of any condition imposed upon the conditional use shall be cause 

for termination of the use. In the event of termination, the zoning Administrator shall notify the 

property owner of the decision to terminate. The owner shall have the right of appeal as provided 

for in section 9.C. of this Ordinance. 

8. Procedure. 

a. A public hearing shall be set, advertised, and conducted by the Planning Commission in 

accordance with section 9.H. of this Ordinance. 

b. Within thirty (30) days following the close of the public hearing, the Planning Commission 

shall render its decision and transmit it to the city Council. The decision of the Commission shall 



City of Willmar Planning Commission 

June 24, 2021 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

be final, unless an appeal is taken to the Board of Zoning Appeals as provided for in Section 9.C. 

of this Ordinance. 

9. Recording. A copy of the conditional use permit decision shall be filed with the Kandiyohi 

county Recorder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



















Staff Parking Survey – City Owned Land on Block 25 
Daily Average: 18.7 of 48 

 
Day Date 10 am 2pm 
 
Friday 
 

 
04/23/2021 

 
19 

 
17 

 
Monday 
 

 
04/26/2021 

 
16 

 
19 

 
Tuesday 
 

 
04/27/2021 

 
19 

 
21 

 
Wednesday 
 

 
04/27/2021 

 
19 

 
21 

 
Thursday 
 

 
04/28/2021 

 
20 

 
18 

 
Friday 
 

 
04/30/2021 

 
19 

 
21 

 
Monday  
 

 
05/03/2021 

 
16 

 
18 

 
Tuesday 
 

 
05/04/2021 

 
17 

 
24 

 
Wednesday 
 

 
05/05/2021 

 
22 

 
21 

 
Thursday 
 

 
05/06/2021 

 
17 

 
20 

 
Friday 
 

 
05/07/2021 

 
16 

 
19 

 
Monday  
 

 
05/10/2021 

 
10 

 
12 

 
Tuesday 
 

 
05/11/2021 

 
13 

 
19 

 
Wednesday 
 

 
05/12/2021 

 
15 

 
17 

 
Thursday 
 

 
05/13/2021 
 

 
17 

 
20 

 
Friday 
 

 
05/14/2021 

 
17 

 
19 

 
 
Monday 
 

 
05/17/2021 

 
11 

 
12 

 

































3 

 

CITY	OF	WILLMAR	
 

FILE	#:		 	 	
   

  	CONDITIONAL	USE	PERMIT	APPLICATION	
	

	

Applicant:						AEHN	LLC			 Address:				619	Highway	71	NE,	Willmar,	MN		56201	

Phone	Number:					320-212-6506				  

Applicant	Representative:			Gabe	Olson	

Applicant	Representative	Phone	Number:		612-298-6559	

Applicant	Representative	Email:		tom@tangibleconsulting.com	

Owner:		AEHN	LLC		is	the	owner	of	the	subject	properties.		AEHN	LLC	is	owned	by	Gabe	

Olson	and	Jeff	Huston.		

Address:			C/o	Suite	Liv’n,	619	Highway	71	NE,	Willmar,	MN		56201	

Applicant’s	Property	Interest:	AEHN	LLC	is	100%	owner	of	the	subject	properties		

Parcel	#s:	95-909-0112	

	

Ordinance	Section	Number:		 	 	 	 	 		

Zoning	District:	R4	Medium	Density	Multiple	Family	

Legal	Description:		

95-909-0112.	THE	W1/2	OF	NE1/4	OF	NW1/4	OF	SEC	9	EXC	N	622'	&	EXC	S	370'	&	EXC	E	

220'	&	EXC	W'LY	355'.	

95-909-0113.	THE	W'LY	355'	OF	THE	FOL	DESC	PROPERTY:	W1/2	OF	NE1/4	OF	NW1/4	

OF	SEC	9	EXC	N	622'	&	EXC	S	370'	&	EXC	E	220'.	

The	Applicant	requests	a	conditional	use	permit	for	the	above-described	property	to:		

Build	two	apartment	buildings	as	described	below	and	in	attached	architectural	plans	

	

What	will	be	the	impact	of	this	use	on	neighborhood	property	values?	Because	a)	the	

development	offers	an	attractive	facade,	b)	entrance	to	the	site	will	be	from	the	east,	and	c)	

landscaping	improvements	will	contribute	to	building	community	among	tenants	of	the	

properties	in	common	ownership	in	this	part	of	Willmar,	the	development	would	be	

expected	to	raise	the	property	values	of	neighboring	properties	.	



4 

 

How	does	this	use	conform	to	the	Zoning	Ordinance	and	the	Comprehensive	Plan	

goals	and	objectives?		

		

Zoning.		Multi-dwellings	of	13	to	24	units	per	building	are	permitted	in	the	R4	Zoning	

District	upon	the	granting	of	a	conditional	use	permit.		Other	zoning	code	requirements	are	

met.	

		

GOAL	A	–	Economic	Growth:	To	have	an	economically	sustainable	community	offering	a	

diverse	set	of	services,	goods,	and	employment	opportunities.	

Economic	growth	is	highly	dependent	on	having	housing	to	support	the	workforce	of	local	

businesses.		The	proposed	apartments	are	targeted	to	the	workforce	needed	by	local	

businesses.		It	increases	the	supply	of	such	housing,	and	does	it	at	a	rent	level	that	makes	it	

a	fit	for	a	great	number	of	Willmar’s	workers.		Its	location	also	makes	it	convenient	for	

students	that	go	to	the	nearby	Ridgewater	College.	

	

GOAL	F	–	Residential	and	Social	Development:	To	preserve	and	develop	a	mixture	of	

different	housing	types,	densities,	and	cost	ranges	that	will	meet	the	needs	of	all	citizens.	

Selected	objectives	and	policies	

• Locate	housing	to	provide	convenient	access	to	public	and	private	facilities	

and	activities.	

• Encourage	the	development	of	neighborhoods	that	include	a	variety	of	

housing	types	and	cost	ranges.	

• Encourage	public	and	private	participation	in	local,	state	and	federal	

programs	for	the	provision	of	low	and	moderate	income	housing	units.	

The	project	furthers	these	and	other	Willmar	goals	and	policies.	

	

How	will	the	use	affect	the	development	and	improvement	of	other	properties	in	the	

neighborhood?		The	project	contributes	to	a	district	of	multifamily	housing	with	high	

quality	new	construction	that	sets	a	high	design	standard	at	rents	that	are	affordable	to	

many	of	Willmar’s	workforce.		



5 

 

	

Have	appropriate	utilities,	access	roads,	ingress/egress,	stormwater	management,	

and	traffic	flow,	been	designed/planned	for	the	use	so	as	to	not	negatively	affect	the	

public	health,	safety	and	welfare	of	the	neighborhood?		Access	to	the	site	is	from	24th	

Street	NW,	on	the	east	side	of	the	site,	which	will	minimize	traffic	interactions	with	

residents	of	the	single	family	homes	to	the	west	of	the	development.		The	planned	upgrade	

to	stormwater	infrastructure	will	accommodate	stormwater	impacts	of	the	development.		

This	proposal	includes	written	commitments	to	management	practices	that	will	ensure	

prompt	attention	to	negative	conditions	or	issues	that	come	up.		

		

How	will	the	use	“fit	into”	the	neighborhood	and	be	compatible	with	abutting	

properties?		The	proposed	multifamily	residential	development	is	at	a	compatible	scale	

with	the	community	of	multifamily	properties	to	the	north	and	south	of	the	subject	site.		

Attention	has	also	been	given	to	making	the	development	compatible	with	neighboring	

single	family	homes	to	the	west.		The	building	is	situated	at	a	40	foot	distance	from	the	

property	line	that	abuts	the	single	family	properties.	Thought	and	care	has	been	given	to	

neighboring	properties.	The	existing	tree/hedge	barrier	is	a	great	asset	to	the	west	for	

neighbor	single	family	houses.	Positioning	of	the	buildings	on	the	lot	has	was	done	with	

neighbor	properities	in	mind.		No	apartment	windows	have	been	placed	on	the	west	side	of	

the	building.	Giving	adjoining	existing	single	family	houses	maximum	privacy.	

	

How	will	the	uses	architectural	appearance,	design,	and	function	of	the	use	conform	

with	the	surrounding	built	environment?		Buildings	will	be	a	similar	design	and	

structure	to	those	around	and	built	out	of	similar	materials.	The	exterior	appearance	has	

been	upgraded	to	add	more	curb	appeal	and	raise	the	standard	of	housing	in	this	area.	See	

attached	picture.	

	

Applicant’s	Signature:			 	 	 	 	  Date:	 	 	 	 	

(For	staff	use	only)		 	

Commission	Date:		 	 	 	 		 	

Gabe's Mac
5-5-21



6 

 

Fees:		$350	to	City	of	Willmar	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
												$46	to	Kandiyohi	County	Recorder	 	 	 								 								Zoning	Administrator	
	

DECISION	OF	THE	CITY	OF	WILLMAR	PLANNING	COMMISSION	

This		 											day	of		 							 	 						,	20								the	City	of	Willmar	Planning	Commission:	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Any	person	aggrieved	by	this	decision	shall	have	the	right	to	appeal	to	the	District	Court	of	

Kandiyohi	County.	

Signed:		 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 				 	

																 								Chairperson	 	 	 			 Zoning	Administrator	 	





A-201
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

$
6
�,1

'
,&
$
7(

'
6
W�
�&
OR
XG

��0
1
���
��
��

)$
;
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

7(
/�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
1
���
�5

'
�$
9
(
��6

8
,7
(
��
��

3
UL
QF

LS
DO

*
UD
HP

H�
+
�'
��0

DK
OH
U�
�$
,$

0
$
+
/(
5
�	
�$
6
6
2
&
,$
7(
6

$
���
�5
���
�&
���
�+
���
�,�
���
7�
���
(
���
�&
���
�7
���
�8
���
�5
���
�(

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

:
,/
/0

$5
�$
3$

57
0
(1

76
�,,
,

��
��
��
�7

+�
67

�1
:
�

:
,/
/0

$5
��0

1�
��
��
�

&�
2�
/$

56
21

�%
8,
/'

,1
*�
�,1

&�
��

��
��
���

��
��
��
�

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEAN ROOF HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P138'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST ROOF PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P145'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONTRASTING ADDRESS NUMBERS - VERIFY ADDRESS NUMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1324

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUSS BEARING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST F.F. (CONC. FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE DOOR SCHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = 7'-6" ABOVE F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTAC LOUVER - TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT ALL FASCIA, SOFFIT, DOOR & ACCENT TRIM, CORNERS, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-301.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: PRE-FINISHED PRE-FINISHED 8" VINYL LAP SIDING FINISH: WOOD GRAIN WOOD GRAIN COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: PRE-FINISHED PRE-FINISHED 4" VINYL DBL-LAP SIDING FINISH: WOOD GRAIN WOOD GRAIN COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: PRE-FINISHED PRE-FINISHED PRE-FORMED VINYL/STEEL TRIM FINISH: SMOOTH SMOOTH COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: LAMINATED SHINGLES LAMINATED SHINGLES - FINISH: ARCHITECTURAL ARCHITECTURAL COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: PRE-FINISHED PRE-FINISHED 8" VINYL LAP SIDING FINISH: WOOD GRAIN WOOD GRAIN COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL: PRE-FINISHED VERT. PRE-FINISHED VERT. BATTEN BOARD SIDING FINISH: WOOD GRAIN WOOD GRAIN FINISI:  COLOR: - - MANUF: --

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P145'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST ROOF PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P138'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEAN ROOF HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUSS BEARING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST F.F. (CONC. FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = 7'-6" ABOVE F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTAC LOUVER - TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT ALL FASCIA, SOFFIT, DOOR & ACCENT TRIM, CORNERS, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-301.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT #1: 4" WINDOW/PTAC TRIM WRAPS W/EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT #1: 4" WINDOW/PTAC TRIM WRAPS W/EXTENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-201

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-201

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P145'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P138'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEAN ROOF HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST ROOF PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUSS BEARING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST F.F. (CONC. FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE DOOR SCHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = 7'-6" ABOVE F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTAC LOUVER - TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT ALL FASCIA, SOFFIT, DOOR & ACCENT TRIM, CORNERS, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PTAC AT THIS LOCATION TO BE AT BOTTM OF WINDOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE 4/A-301.1 FOR CANOPY INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT #1: ROOF/WALL LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P145'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = %%P138'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEAN ROOF HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST ROOF PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUSS BEARING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST F.F. (CONC. FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE A-30X PAGES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD F.F. (GYP. CRETE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = SEE DOOR SCHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV = 7'-6" ABOVE F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTAC LOUVER - TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT ALL FASCIA, SOFFIT, DOOR & ACCENT TRIM, CORNERS, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PTAC AT THIS LOCATION TO BE AT BOTTM OF WINDOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE 4/A-301.1 FOR CANOPY INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT #1: ROOF/WALL LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL WALL SYSTEM; NOTE 26 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL WINDOW SYSTEM; NOTE 32 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEALANT CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X3 FURRING STRIP, SLOPE AT WINDOW SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED METAL WINDOW WRAPS W/INTEGRAL J; RETURN BACK TO BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X3 FRURRING STIPS @ 16" O.C. ATTACH TO STUDS, BLOCK CAVITIES EVERY 10' VERTICAL FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" SHEATHING W/BUILDING WRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED METAL CORNER TRIP W/INTEGRAL J; RETURN BACK TO BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDING (SEE ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT #1 EXTERIOR FURRING

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Name and Address

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm Name and Address

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revision/Issue

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF



$//�&20321(176�2)�&+$,1
/,1.�)(1&(�$66(0%/<�$5(
9,1</�&2$7('

73
73

(%
(%

73
73

/$1'6&$3(�/(*(1'
5*47$�2.#06+0)5

3$5.,1*

AS-101
SITE PLAN

$
6
�,1

'
,&
$
7(

'
6
W�
�&
OR
XG

��0
1
���
��
��

)$
;
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

7(
/�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
1
���
�5

'
�$
9
(
��6

8
,7
(
��
��

3
UL
QF

LS
DO

*
UD
HP

H�
+
�'
��0

DK
OH
U�
�$
,$

0
$
+
/(
5
�	
�$
6
6
2
&
,$
7(
6

$
���
�5
���
�&
���
�+
���
�,�
���
7�
���
(
���
�&
���
�7
���
�8
���
�5
���
�(

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

:
,/
/0

$5
�$
3$

57
0
(1

76
�,,
,

��
��
��
�7

+�
67

�1
:
�

:
,/
/0

$5
��0

1�
��
��
�

&�
2�
/$

56
21

�%
8,
/'

,1
*�
�,1

&�
��

��
��
���

��
��
��
�

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNAGE SHALL CONFORM W/CURRENT STATE & LOCAL CODES & REGULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS CORNERS, TYP. SEE SITE PLAN FOR PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"  O.D. GALV. STL.PIPE (PAINTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING-FIRE LANE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"X18" SIGN MN STATE DOT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE/LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SURFACE FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WITHOUT SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
39" TALL 34" WIDE 4" STROKE - INTERNATIONAL STANDARD HANDICAP PARKING STENCIL, PROVIDE 1 PER H.C. PARKING SPACE. PAINT SYMBOL (2) COATS LIGHT BLUE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.C. PARKING SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNAGE SHALL CONFORM W/CURRENT STATE & LOCAL CODES & REGULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE/LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.C. PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"X18" SIGN MN STATE DOT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"  O.D. GALV. STL.PIPE (PAINTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS CORNERS, TYP. SEE SITE PLAN FOR PLACEMENT, 1 PER HANDICAP SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"X6" SIGN MN STATE DOT STANDARD "VAN ACCESSIBLE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SURFACE FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE UP 1:12

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE UP 1:10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE UP 1:10

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED GRANULAR FILL SLOPE FLARED SIDES AT 1:10

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK CURB-CUT DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE POST W/CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE CHAIN LINK FENCE W/FENCE TIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE CHAIN LINK FENCE W/FENCE TIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  CONCRETE PIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE CHAIN LINK FENCE W/FENCE TIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERMINAL POST W/CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE FRAME & POST HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE LATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-MANUFACTURED GATE ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENSION BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENSION BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" ROCK FACE C.M.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SLAB (SEE STRUCT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" COMPACTED GRANULAR FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF COPING ON TREATED 2X PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL: 8/S301 FOR STRUCTURAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK FACE C.M.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED PARKING FOR PROPOSED BUILDING =  96 =  96 TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED =  96 =  96 PARKING PROVIDED    =  98=  98

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS (SEED) W/ AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION  SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA W/WOOD MULCH GROUND COVER & AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING/DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAD/CURB/SIDEWALK/PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTHONY WATERER SPIREA - 18" HT., CONT. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. - 18" HT., CONT. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. NORMAN SPIREA - 18" HT., CONT. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. - 18" HT., CONT. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC. GOLDFLAME SPIREA - 18" HT., CONT - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC.- 18" HT., CONT - MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC.- MIN. 5 CANES AT HT. SPEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:	FOR PLANTING DETAIL - SEE 1&2/AG-101FOR PLANTING DETAIL - SEE 1&2/AG-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPED OPEN SPACE: SITE SF: 138,023. SF 138,023. SF LANDSCAPED SF:  86,932. SF  86,932. SF PERCENT OF SITE LANDSCAPED: 63.0%63.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR H.C. PARKING SIGNS SEE DETAIL:5/AS-101 - REQUIRED AT ALL H.C. PARKING STALLS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12 UNIT APT. BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12 UNIT APT. BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12 UNIT APT. BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12 UNIT APT. BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PARKING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' REAR YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CHAIN LINK PRIVACY FENCE LOCATED 2' FROM PROPERTY LINE - SEE DETAIL:7/AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE & LANSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK CURB-CUT  SEE DETAIL:6/AS-101 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SIDE YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE - SEE DETAIL: 9/AS-101 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 24 UNIT APARTMENT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 24 UNIT APARTMENT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' FRONT YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PARKING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR H.C. PARKING SYMBOLS SEE DETAIL:4/AS-101 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Name and Address

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm Name and Address

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revision/Issue

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF



























 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 1 

Chapter Five: 
Goals, Objectives, and Policies 

 
This section of the Comprehensive Plan establishes the City of Willmar’s goals, objectives and 
policy guidelines.  They will be used to help make land use and planning decisions by those 
responsible for Willmar’s future.  The goals have been organized into eight topic areas.  The 
goals are used as a framework for the objectives and policy guidelines.  The policies, in turn, 
provide specific information on what values and issues are important to Willmar residents.  More 
importantly, the objectives and policies clearly identify how decisions should be made by City 
officials on a day-to-day basis.  
 
After discussion of issues and alternative overall growth policies, the following goals and 
policies are suggested for future growth and development for the City of Willmar.  It is important 
to note that a goal is a long-range objective, whereas a policy is an action statement intended to 
implement the goal.  These goals and policies are important because they constitute the land use 
plan and serve as the basis for the ordinances used to implement the plan.  The courts have 
increasingly held that the goals and policies of a comprehensive plan are important determinants 
in interpreting different provisions of a zoning ordinance. 
 
The community’s nine goal areas are listed below:   
 

A. Economic Growth  
B. Public Utilities  
C. Transportation  
D. Natural Resources & Environmental Quality 
E. Parks & Open Space  
F. Residential & Social Development 
G. Historic Preservation & Aesthetics 
H. Downtown 
I. Citizen Participation & Intergovernmental Cooperation 

 
 
Throughout the Comprehensive Plan, goals, objectives, and policies are defined in the following 
way: 
 

Goals: Idealistic statements intended to be attained at some undetermined future date. 
Goals are purposefully general in nature. 
 
Objectives: Statements designed to achieve a goal.  Objectives always begin with an 
action verb (i.e., promote, expand, design, etc.) and can be measurable if a date, dollar 
amount, or similar value is identified.  

 
Policies: Statements which support the action of the objective. Policies are more specific 
recommendations and can be converted into action work plans. 

 
 



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 2 

 
Section A:  Economic Growth 

 
 
1. GOAL:  To have an economically sustainable community offering a diverse set of services, 

goods, and employment opportunities.    
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Promote economic development which will be beneficial to the community, including tax 
base enhancement, increased aesthetics, and expanded employment opportunities.   

 
b. Promote the existing economic base and the expansion of existing businesses. 

 
c. Work with the Economic Development Commission on a variety of business retention 

and expansion activities.   
 
 

3. POLICIES: 
 
a. Encourage programs that promote diversified commercial growth to meet the needs of 

West-Central Minnesota.  
 
b. Strengthen the business districts through various development and redevelopment 

programs.  
 

c. Encourage full development of existing industrial and commercial land within the City. 
 

d. Encourage the expansion of existing, and development of new, businesses at suitable 
locations.   

 
e. Encourage commercial property owners to maintain and upgrade their existing buildings 

and land through reasonable design standards and maintenance ordinances.  
 
f. Vacant properties should meet property maintenance standards. 

 
g. Provide reasonable and safe access to all retail and industrial uses. 

 
h. Provide adequate parking for all business and community needs, when feasible.   

 
i. The impact on parking should be examined prior to making land use decisions.   

 
j. Industrial and commercial land uses shall be located in areas where the adverse impact on 

surrounding land uses is minimized. 
 

Sarah Swedburg

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 3 

k. Commercial and industrial uses should be located on soil types that are most able to 
accommodate such development. 

 
l. Industrial sites should have good access to utilities and transportation routes. 

 
m. Air, water and noise pollution from industry should be monitored and regulated in 

accordance with the MPCA (and MS4 requirements). 
 

n. Industrial and commercial sites should be preserved for future growth and not utilized for 
further residential development.  

 
o. Development should occur only in areas where utilities can be provided with optimal 

efficiency and cost. 
 

p. Provide for the orderly expansion of commercial, industrial, and residential areas. 
 

q. Encourage development through government participation in public finance programs 
such as JOBZ, tax increment financing, Economic Development Commission programs, 
etc.  

 
r. Promote green space and outdoor amenities by incorporating them into commercial and 

industrial development plans.  
 

s. Cultivate positive aesthetics and image of commercial, industrial, and residential areas, 
encouraging continual renewal and improvement.  

 
t. Encourage the expansion of medical services in the community, recognizing these 

services as a major industry bringing jobs and visitors to the City. 
 

u. Facilitate housing and community services as demographics change, in preparation for 
the baby boomers as seniors, when reviewing development plans. 

 
v. Promote activities of the Economic Development Commission, Chamber of Commerce, 

and other community organizations for both business retention and expansion. 
 

w. Promote Willmar as a great location to host conferences and other special events. 
 

x. Recognize the importance of Ridgewater College in contributing to the city’s economy, 
diversity, identity, activity, arts, entertainment, opportunity, and social fabric. 

 
y. Continue to maintain, expand, and develop important public/semi-public community 

facilities, such as the Civic Center, Library, Aquatic Center, parks, and other key activity 
venues. 

 
z. Promote the use of the Willmar Municipal Airport as an economic development tool.   

 

Sarah Swedburg

Sarah Swedburg

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 4 

aa. Expand and promote tourism opportunities throughout the greater Willmar area, 
including the use of our extensive trails, lakes, and parks.   

 
 

Section B:  Public Utilities 
 
 

1. GOAL: To efficiently make available a full range of public utilities throughout the 
community.  

 
 

2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Make public utilities affordable to both residents and business owners.  
 
b. Provide public utilities in a manner that reinforces the City’s staged growth and 

redevelopment policies. 
 
 

3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Control City expansion by creating an urban growth boundary map based on public 
utility extension plans and forecasts. 

 
b. Encourage new development in areas contiguous to existing development in the City to 

bring about orderly expansion of public utilities, thus supporting smart-growth land use 
practices while at the same time preserving parkland and green space. 

 
c. Encourage dense development in areas where the soils, water table, and geological 

features support the efficient extension of public utilities. 
 

d. Require a full complement of public utilities such as sewer, water, gas, electricity, 
telecommunications, broadband, storm sewer/retention ponds, etc. 

 
e. In the upgrading of public utilities in redevelopment areas, refine the assessment policies 

to encourage the continued use and/or redevelopment of these areas. 
 

f. Develop and update a public utilities plan and growth boundary map. 
 
g. Affirm the City’s desire to serve all residents and business with municipal power, etc., 

and to work with other public and private utility entities in regional service matters.  
 

h. Endorse technology advancement in industry and technology growth and awareness 
throughout the community, especially in new development. 

 
i. Promote the expansion and use of the district hot water heating system. 

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 5 

 
Section C:  Transportation 

 
 
1. GOAL:  To have a comprehensive and functional public transportation system that serves 

the entire community. 
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 

 
a. Provide a transportation system (street, rail, air, pedestrian & bike trails) which 

complements land use development and reinforces a staged growth approach to future 
development. 

 
b. Encourage street and trail systems which maximize accessibility to places of 

employment, recreation, shopping, entertainment, and all developed portions of the City 
 

c. Cultivate a healthy City that is walkable and bikeable. 
 
 
3. POLICIES:   
 

a. Integrate land use planning with transportation planning to minimize the adverse effects 
of transportation systems (i.e., noise and air pollution) on adjacent development. 

 
b. Avoid developing transportation facilities that will adversely affect natural resources or 

encourage leap-frog development. 
 

c. Develop a transportation system that properly balances considerations of safety, cost, 
accessibility and environmental protection. 

 
d. Control land use development at major intersections and interchanges to avoid 

compromising the safety, accessibility and function of the streets involved. 
 

e. Develop a transportation system that stimulates economic development and provides for 
the efficient, non-disruptive flow of goods, especially from rural to urban markets. 

 
f. Develop a transportation system that properly integrates all modes of transportation. 

 
g. Develop and participate in programs to ensure adequate parking in the downtown area. 

 
h. Utilize existing right-of-way for the expansion of transportation systems to reduce the 

amount of agricultural land taken out of production, when feasible. 
 

i. Develop additional minor arterials and collectors as the City grows. 
 

Sarah Swedburg

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 6 

j. Encourage the beautification of principal arterial entrances into Willmar. 
 

k. Encourage expansion of the airport to accommodate larger aircraft and commercial 
development.  

 
l. Encourage connectivity of neighborhoods, including through cul-de-sacs via easements 

along property lines. 
 

m. Encourage the study and planning of a second crossing over the railroad tracks that is not 
at grade.  

 
n. Provide for efficient movement of traffic from residential areas in the north to 

commercial areas in the south (i.e., 1st St. N to 1st St. S. and 7th St. NW). 
 

o. Include aesthetic, as well as functional, considerations for all transportation plans. 
 

p. Encourage residential street design that allows for ancillary sidewalks and bike lanes, and 
storm water impacts, as well as to reduce residential development costs. 

 
q. Identify existing streets for designated bike lanes on the master transportation plan. 

 
r. Develop a bike trail system that encompasses existing and new developments. 

 
s. Access should be controlled consistent with the functional classification of roadways. 

 
 
 

Section D:  Natural Resources and Environmental Quality 
 
 
1. GOALS: To protect and enhance the air, water, and land resources in the City as a vital 

ingredient of the human living environment. 
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES:  
 

a. Protect and enhance the existing lakes and wildlife habitat as vital natural resources to the 
City. 

 
b. Promote standards for energy efficient buildings. 

 
c. Promote programs to minimize energy consumption. 

 
d. Promote recycling and programs to encourage the re-use of solid waste. 

 
 

Sarah Swedburg

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 7 

3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Promote land use management policies and programs that will protect the natural 
resources of the City.  

 
b. Utilize appropriate state and federal standards related to air, water, and noise pollution. 

 
c. Use natural resource information, including soils data, as one basis for determining the 

direction of future expansion of the City and for public open space acquisition programs. 
 

d. Require the use of natural resource information in subdivision development and project 
design. 

 
e. Regulate development in the areas of the City where soil suitability and high water table 

require such regulation. 
 

f. Encourage and promote reforestation and tree planting programs within the community 
as part of the development/redevelopment process.   

 
g. Participate in tree disease control programs on public and private property. 

 
h. Regulate development in such a manner as to preserve natural drainage in the 

community, when possible. 
 

i. Enact ordinances to control soil erosion and siltation. 
 

j. Enact standards and ordinances to regulate the removal of natural vegetation. 
 

k. Require the staging of urban development projects so that the smallest practical area of 
land is exposed at any one period of time in order to minimize soil erosion. 

 
l. Encourage the owners of major tracts of undeveloped land to construct and maintain 

shelter-belts and implement other soil erosion control programs such as contour plowing, 
strip-cropping, etc. 

 
m. Preserve prime agricultural land from non-agricultural development to the greatest extent 

possible without impeding orderly urban and economic expansion. 
 

n. Promote water management policies/programs to conserve the quantity and maintain the 
quality of all water resources in the community and its environs. 

 
o. Encourage the use of energy conservation technology and techniques, such as solar, 

wind, geo thermal etc. 
 

p. Protect marshes/wildlife habitat in future development areas. 
 

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 8 

q. Encourage programs to retrofit existing buildings to make them more energy efficient. 
 

r. Promote recycling and the reuse of solid waste products. 
 

s. Encourage the use of refuse-derived fuels and alternative energies when proven to be safe 
and efficient.  

 
t. Promote the use of pedestrian and bike access to public waters , parks, and other public 

amenities via trails. 
 

u. Support brownfield redevelopment projects, when feasible.  
 
 

Section E:  Parks and Open Space 
 
 
1. GOAL: To increase and enhance park and open space recreation opportunities by promoting 

maximum multi-use of park and recreation resources. 
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Manage the community’s natural resources to provide appropriate park and open space 
recreation opportunities. 

 
b. Provide for new park and open space recreation areas as a part of the residential 

development process. 
 

c. Plan street, pedestrian, and trail systems that provide access to all developed portions of 
the City, connecting parks and open spaces. 

 
 
3. POLICIES: 
 

a. As residential and commercial/industrial areas expand, park and recreational facilities 
designed to serve the developing area should be provided.  This should be done either by 
a dedication of land to the public, or by a payment in lieu of dedication. 

 
b. Include dedicated areas for parks and open space in new subdivisions, when feasible. 

 
c. When feasible, all parks and open spaces shall be linked via trails.  
 
d. Encourage preservation and management of existing parks and open space areas. 

 
e. A system of tree plantings and landscaping, as well as reforestation, should be enacted to 

enhance the beauty of each area to the extent its primary use will permit. 

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 9 

 
f. Parking areas that are provided in parks should be properly landscaped and surfaced.   

 
g. Where industrial or commercial uses border or are located adjacent to a park, they should 

be screened by appropriate plantings.   
 

h. Where recreation areas are located in residential neighborhoods, appropriate plantings 
and screenings should be provided to protect the neighborhood from noise.  

 
i. Abandoned railroad areas should be developed as public trails or recreational areas when 

the future rail use of the site is not foreseeable. 
 

j. Areas best suited for future parks, open space, and trails should be identified and 
preserved.  

 
 

Section F:  Residential and Social Development 
 
 
1. GOAL: To preserve and develop a mixture of different housing types, densities, and cost 

ranges that will meet the needs of all citizens.  
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Establish and maintain safe, healthful, and blight-free residences and neighborhoods. 
 
b. Locate housing to provide convenient access to public and private facilities and activities.  

 
 

3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Monitor the existing and future housing needs for the various income and age groups. 
 
b. Encourage the maintenance and rehabilitation of existing housing structures in the 

community. 
 

c. Encourage the development of neighborhoods that include a variety of housing types and 
cost ranges. 

 
d. Encourage public and private participation in local, state and federal programs for the 

provision of low and moderate income housing units.  
 

e. Promote the location of higher-density housing units near commercial, medical and 
employment concentrations. 

 



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 10 

f. Encourage design standards in subdivisions and higher-density housing that take into 
consideration the social and psychological well-being of their residents. 

 
g. Encourage innovative site and housing unit design for energy conservation, aesthetics, 

open space preservation, bike and pedestrian access etc. 
 

h. Regulate home occupations carefully to avoid or minimize traffic problems and 
incompatible land uses in residential districts.  

 
i. Regulate industrial or commercial land uses to control truck traffic and to reduce land use 

conflicts with residential properties. 
 

j. Encourage the location of residential subdivisions where City services are readily 
available and in areas which have direct access to existing transportation routes. 

 
k. Promote the orderly growth of residential developments with logical expansion of 

municipal services and utilities. 
 

l. Encourage transition zones between low and high density residential developments. 
 

m. Restrict the location of mobile homes to mobile home parks where adequate services can 
be provided.   
 

n. Promote the use of rain gardens and infiltration basins to reduce storm water impacts. 
 
 

Section G:  Historic Preservation and Aesthetics 
 
 
1. GOAL: To protect, preserve and enhance valuable historic and aesthetic sites throughout the 

community. 
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 

 
a. Protect, preserve, and restore key historic buildings and sites throughout the community. 

 
b. Create, maintain, and enhance visually pleasing areas and neighborhoods throughout the 

community. 
 
 
3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Maintain a historic-design inventory of the community with special emphasis on the 
Central Business District. 

 



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 11 

b. Enforce design, screening and landscape standards in the construction of all public 
facilities, utilities and buildings, when needed. 

 
c. Incorporate design and landscaping standards in all private development, including 

residential, commercial and industrial projects. 
 

d. Require all land uses which are either a potential source of nuisance or of questionable 
visual value such as junk yards, gravel and coal storage areas, etc. to be landscaped and 
screened from adjacent areas. 

 
e. Regulate the size, placement and visual appearance of all signs, whether private or public. 

 
f. Cooperate with local historic preservation groups for enhanced urban design throughout 

the community 
 
 
 

Section H:  Downtown 
 

 
 
1. GOAL: To maintain and enhance the downtown area as a great place to live, work, shop, 

dine, and entertain.   
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Revitalize the downtown area for both business and residential uses.   
 

b. Encourage a quality urban residential and commercial connection to the lakes. 
 

c. Facilitate high pedestrian use and green space amenities. 
 

d. Maintain and/or increase employment opportunities,  
 
 

 

Willmar Downtown Planning 
 

The Willmar Design Center and the citizens of Willmar have initiated downtown planning 
and have outlined a number of strategic actions to enhance the Downtown.  The four main 
recommendations include 1) restoring Litchfield Avenue, 2) establishing a downtown 
commons area, 3) urbanizing First Street, and 4) developing a connection to the lakes.  The 
Willmar Downtown Visioneer was created to summarize these initiatives.  For more 
information, please contact the Willmar Design Center.   

Sarah Swedburg



 
City of Willmar Comprehensive Plan Ch. 5  Pg. 12 

3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Encourage the restoration of Litchfield Ave. SW and SE by facilitating direct access to 
the bypass. 

 
b. Allow development with higher density and relaxed parking requirements beyond the 

existing Central Business District to facilitate redevelopment. 
 

c. Encourage development of the downtown commons area/parking. 
 

d. Support groups such as the Design Center that focus on downtown improvements. 
 
 

Section I:  Citizen Participation and Intergovernmental Cooperation 
 
 
1. GOAL: To involve citizens, agencies, and organizations in the City’s key decisions. 
 
 
2. OBJECTIVES: 
 

a. Maintain open and regular communication relating to planning and development issues 
between different levels of government. 

 
b. Maintain open and regular communication relating to planning and development issues 

between the various community agencies and organizations. 
 

c. Maintain open and regular communication relating to planning and development issues 
with the public.  

 
 

3. POLICIES: 
 

a. Encourage open communication relating to all planning and development issues between 
the different levels of government, including the townships, city, county, school district, 
regional development commission, and state agencies.  

 
b. Seek comment from adjacent governmental units on proposed new growth and 

development policies, comprehensive plans and development ordinances which are likely 
to have an area-wide effect. 

 
c. Integrate planning and development by involving the various City departments and 

appointed commissions in planning and development issues. 
 

d. Inform and educate the public, encouraging the widest possible citizen participation in 
the planning and development process. 


	Willmar Comprehensive Plan CIP Review
	Willmar Comprehensive Plan CIP Review
	CUP Application - 24th St NW Apartments 05.06.21(1)
	Petition and Emails Against Suite Livn CUP.pdf
	Petition Against Suite Livn 24th St. NW - 60 signatures.pdf
	Email in opposition - William & Debra Paterson.pdf
	Email in opposition - Tom & Heidi Burton.pdf




